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Ruth Nettles -- 
From: 

Sent: 

nicki .garcia@akerrnan.com 

Thursday, February 25, 2010 4:21 PM 

To: Filings@psc.state.fl.us 

cc: 

Subject: 

Attachments: 20100225171750364.pdf 

Charles Murphy; Jamie Morrow; mg2708@att.corn; th9467@att.com; paul.guarisco@phelps.com; 
jimdry@newphone.com; rnatthew.feil@akerrnan.com 

Electronic Filing - Docket No. 100022-TP 

Attached is an electronic filing for the docket referenced below. If you have any questions, please contact either Matt Feil or Nicki 
Garcia at the numbers below. Thank you. 

Person Responsible for Filing: 

Matthew Feil 
AKERMAN SENTERFITT 
106 East College Avenue, Suite 1200 
Tallahassee, FL 32301 
(850) 425-1614 (direct) 
(850) 222-0103 (main) 
rnatt.feil@akerman.com 

Docket No. and Name: Docket No. 100022-TP - In Re: Complaint of BellSouth Telecommunications, Inc., d/b/a AT&T Florida 
Against Image Access, Inc. d/b/a NewPhone 

Filed on behalf o f  NewPhone 

Total Number of Pages: 38 

Description of Documents: 

Nicki Garcia 
Office of: 
Lila A. Jaber 
Maffhew Feil 
Eraulio Eaez 

Akerman Senterfitt 
106 East College Avenue, Suite 1200 
Tallahassee, FL 32301 

Nicki.Garcia@Akerman .corn 
(850) 425-1677 

Motion to Dismiss and/or Stay and Response in Opposition to Motion for Consolidation 

w.akerman.com 

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTE: The information contained in this tranmission may be privileged and confidential information, and is intended only for the use ofthe indivldual or entity 
named above. Ifthe reader ofthis message i s  not the intended recipient, you are hereby notitied that any dissemination, distribution or copying of this communication is strictly prohibited. If  
you have received this transmission in error, please immediately reply to the sender that you have received this communication in error and then delete it. Thank you. 

CIRCULAR 230 NOTICE: To comply with U S  Treasury Depamnent and IRS regulations, we are required to advise you that, unless expressly stated otherwise, any U.S. federal tax advice 
contained in this transmittal, is not intended or witten to be used, and cannot be used, by any pemon for the purpose of (i) avoiding penalties under the U.S. Internal Revenue Code, or (ii) 
promoting, marketing or recommending to another party any transaction or mailer addressed in this e-mail or altaehment. 

2/25/2010 



February 25,201 0 

VIA ELECTIiQNIC FILING 

h4s. AM Cole 
Commission Clerk 
Florida Public Sewi 
2540 Shummd Oak 
Tallahassee, FL 32399 

Ke: Dockek 100022-TP - Complaint of BellSouth Telecommunications, Inc., d/b/a ATdST 
Florida Against Image Access, Ine. d/b/a NewPhone 

Dear Ms. Cole: 

Plea.% find attached for filing the Motion to D 
ition to Motion for Consolidation along with fixhi 
of Image Access, Jnc. d/b/a NewPhonc. 

Your assistance in this matter is greatly appEciated. 

iss and/or Stay and Response in 
for the above docket on 

uId yoti have any questions, 
please do not hesitate to contact me. 

Attachments 



SL‘XIK OF F1.OWIDA 
PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

In Re: Complaint of BeIlSoulh Telecom- 
munications, Inc., d/b/a AT&T Florida ) Docket No. 100022-TP 

) 

Against Image Access, Jnc. d/b/a 1 
NewPhone ) 

MOTION TO DISMISS AND/OR STAY 

AND RESPONSE IN OPPOSITION TO MOTION FOR CONSOLIDATION 

Image Access, Inc. d/b/a NewPhone (“NewPhone”) respectfnlly requests that the Florida 

Public Service Commission (the *‘Commission”) enter an order dismissing the Complaint and 

Petition for Rciie f led by BellSouth Telecommunications, Inc. d/b/a AT&l 

Southeast d/b/a AT&T Florida (“AT&”’) in the above-referenced Docket on January 8, 2010, 

or, in the alternative, staying these proceedings pending resolution of Federal Communications 

Commission C‘FCC”) WC Docket No. 04-123, In the mafter ofPelttion ofimage Access, Inc. 

d/b/a NewPhone for Declararory Ruling Regarding Incumbent Local &change Currier 

Promolions Available fur Resale Under the Communica!ions Act of 4, as Amended, and 

Sections 51.601 et seq. of the Commission’s Rules (the “FCC Resale Docket”), and pending 

resolution of the court cases cited below. 

Moreover, because the FCC Resde Docket wiil determine the policy issue that AT&T 

urges the Commission to consider and to consolidate - whether AT&T can apply the resale 

discount to retail “cash-back” promotions offered by AT&T to resellers - the Commission 

should deny AT&T’s Motion €or Consolidation, without prejudice, as premature. The FCC 

Resale Docket already effkctively consolidates this issue, and the FCC’s deoision will provide 

I 

I 

TL218031:i 



Response in Opposition 
Motion to Dismiss/Stay 
February 25,2010 

guidance to AT&T and resellers an a national basis, rather than subiccting the parties to potential 

inconsistent state commission and appellate court decisions. 

In supporl of this Motion to Dismiss and/or Stay and Response in Opposition to Motion 

for Consolidation, NcwPhone asserts the following: 

BACKGROUND 

1. On June 13,2006, NewPhone filed a Petition far Declaratory Ruling with the 

FCC (the “FCC Petition”), at FCC WC Docket No. 06-1 

uncertainty surrounding the resale o ncumbent local exchange carrier (“11,EC”) sewiees subject 

to cash-back promotions, a d s ,  COUPO~S, checks, or other similar giveaways. Section 8.1 of 

the General Terms and Conditions e parties’ 2006 Interconnection Agreement states, “If the 

Parties are unable to resolve the issues dating to the dispute in the n o d  course of business 

then either Party shall file a compIaint with the Commission or I: 

In light ofthe nature of the disputes arising out of AT&T’s interpretation of its resale obligations 

under federal law, NewPhone filed Ihe FCC Petition asking the FCCC to addsss 

the resale availability, pricing, and timing of ILECs’ cash-back, non-c 

bundle promotional offerings, 

remove 

to ZVSOlVe SUGh kUeS . . . . ” ‘  

I 

I 

Interconnection Agreement between BellSoutli Telecomniunications, Ino. and Image Amass, Inc. d/b/a NcwPhone, I 

nded and extended on Marc 1,2006 (the “2006 Agreement”), General Terms and 

IL218oj1,L 



Response in Opposition 
Motion to DismisdStay 
Fcbruary25.2010 

2. In response to the FCC’s Public Notice requesting commcnts and reply comments 

from interested parties: BellSouth Corporation and AT&?’ Inc.’ both filed timely comments 

opposing the Ielief requested by NewPhone. This matter is currently pending before the FCC. 

3. Xn January of this year, AT&T filed separate cornplaints against NewPhone and 

another reseller operating in Florida, LifeComcx Telecom, LLC, which AT&T seeks to 

consolidate. In its Complaint filed against NewPhone with this Commission, AT&T seeks a 

decision declaring that (a) NewPhone has breached its interconnection Agreement by wronghlly 

withholding amounts due and payable, (b) 

liable to AT&T, and (d) NewPhone is required to pay AT&T all amounts withheld, including 

T has been financially harmed, 

ent charges and interest4 

4. AT&T also filed substantively identical complaints against NewPhone in 

Louisiana, Nlississippi, Alabama, Georgia, Tennessee, South Carolina, and North Carolina; in 

these various jurisdictions, AT&T also filed separate complaints against other reseUers. 

5.  In its Motion for Consolidation, however, AT&T asks that two issues it asxerts are 

“in common” with the other complaint it fi 

resolution.” Specifically, AT&T suggests the comman issues are: (1) whetbm AT&T can apply 

the resale discount established by the Commission to “cash-back” promotions offeted by AT&T 

to its customers that AT&T makes available for resale, and (2) whether AT&” is required to 

in Florida be consolidated 

as Exhibit A. 
E, was the result ofa merger of SBC Communicatronq, Inc and AT&T Corp. The opposdion af 

2 

I 

Inc. in PCC WC Docket No 06-129 included the company’s ILEC subsidiaries. 
a see Complaint pp. 3 , s  (89). 9 (part VI). 

3 



Response in Opposition 
Motion to DismisdStay 
F‘ebiuary 25.2010 

offer for resale certain customer referral marketing promotions (such as the “word-of-mouth” 

promotion). 

ARGUMFBT 

6 .  As discussed below, the first issue raised by AT&T is already pending for 

Therefore, AT&T’s related claim a@&t NewPhone should be rcsolution before the FCC. 

dismissed without prejudice or stayed pending the FCC’s decision. 

7. The second issue raised by AT&T is not applicable to NewPhone as NewPhone 

has not YOU& credits associated with AT&T’s customer &erral marketing promotions 

(including the “word-of-mouth” promption). Therefore, AT&T’s Complaint hiis to state a claim 

againstNewPhone, and pro s no basis for consolidation with respect to that issue? 

1. The Commission should dismiss or stay AT&T’s Complaint as it relates to the 
resale issues being, decided in the FCC’s Resale Docket. 

8. The Commission should dismiss 

Complaint pending the FCC’s decision in the FCC Resal 

’s  Complaint or, alternatively, stay the 

9. Each complaint, including AT&T’s Complaint before the Commission, requi 

interpretation of  FCC regulations regarding resale obligations to make retail promotions 

available to competitive local exchange carrier (‘‘CJ2W’’> reseilers; nowhere does AT&T allege 

~i6iatiOn of a state commission regulation or state statue. Judicial economy and eeciency 

’ NewPhone has asserted the defense of no cause of aetion as to ATBrT’s word-of-mouth claim in its Answe,and 
New Phone will file a dispositive mgtion relating to that claim at the appropriate time in this proceeding, assuming 
AT&T does not voluntanly withdraw that claim forthwith, as it 

T1.2 I m31 , I  

4 



Response in Opposition 
Motion to Dismiss/Stuy 
February 25,20 I O  

would be best served by allowing the FCC, the governing body charged with promulgating and 

interpreting the regulations at issue, to provide guidance on the issues raised by AT&T in the 

complaints, and to interpret ils own rcgulalions. 

10. An order by the FGC may be dispositive of the issucs presented in AT&Ts 

Complaint. Without a stay in this proceeding, the parties will most likely waste significant 

money and Commission resources developing their respective positions, only to have this 

proceeding mooted by an interven order of the FCC. A dismissal or stay will help conserve 

Commission resources and help to avoid multiple appeals to various S. 

11. Consolidation of a rcgiohal issue involving interpretation of federal statutes and 

regulations can realize e al or national level - not on a state-by-state 

basis. Furthermore, state-by-state determinations raise the risk of inter-state coaflicts and are 

duplicative o the same issues. 

12. In fact, the issue concerning restrictions on tho resale discount is alrctady pending 

in three proceedings: 

a. Interpretation of the Te munieations Act of 1996 (the “Act”) and FCC 

regulations relating to AT&T’s resale obligations and the prohibition against imposing 

unreasonable or discrimin conditions or limitations on resale are issues currently pending in 

the PGC Resale Docket. According to the F ’s Public Notice in the FCC Resale Docket 

(attached as Exhibit A), interested parties were invited to comment on 

ILECs are required either to ofir  to telecommunications carriers thc value of the 
giveaway or dismount, in addition to making available for resale at the wholesale 
discount the telecommunications servke that is the subject of the ILEC’s retail 

i 

I1.218031,1 
5 



Response in Opposition 
Motion to DismisdStay 
Fcbniary 25,2010 

promotion, or to apply the wholesale discount to the effective retail rate of the 
telecommunications service that is the subject of the ILK'S  retail promotion. .. 

'This is the same as the first issue AT&T has raised in its Complaint before this 

6 

Commission. 

b. Issues of AT&T's resale obligations under the federal statute and regulations are 

also pending in CGM, LLG v. BellSouth Telecommunications, Inc., Case No. 3:09-cv-003?7 

(W.D. N.C. 2009). The appellate court for &at circuit has already ruled, in Bellsouth 

Telecommunications, Inc. v. Sanford, 494 F.3d 439 (4' Cir. 2007), t hat the Act and FCC 

regulations thereunder require AT&T to make the promotions offered to retail customers 

availahle to CLEC resellers. 

c.  A U.S. District Court in Texas enjoined AT&T from engaging in resrrictions on 

resale designed to reduce the amount of promotional discounts offered to CLEC resellers when 

compared to retail consumers. Budget Prepay, Inc, v. AT&T Inc. flda SBC Communications. 

Inc., Case No. 3:09-cv-1494-P 0 . D .  TX 2009).7 AT&T is currently appe that de&-islon to 

the United States Fifth Circuit Court Is, Case Nos. 09-1 1 188 and 09-1 1099. 

13. Rulings mtrde in these earlier-filed proceedings will c lady or determihe AT&T's 

resale obligations under fedetal statutes and regulations and advance the resolution of the 

billing and payment issues in AT&T's Complaint against Newphone. 

14. Therefore, NewPhone asserts that resolution by the FCC of the issues presented in 

the FCC Resale Docket may render unnecessary any further proceedings in this Docket. 

PCC WC DocketNo. 06129, Public Notice, p. L (luly LO, 2006). 
' Attachedas Bxhibit 8.  

I IJl8O31 ,I 

6 
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Response in Opposition 
Motion to DismisdStay 
February 25,2010 

Accordingly, NewPhone respectfully moves that the Commission stay these proceedings while 

the FCC Resale Docket is pending before the FCC. 

11. AT&T has nu claim 
Word-of-Mouth Prom 

t NewPhone for amounts allegedly owed for the 

15. AT&T has asserted a claim to hold NewPhone liable for credits allegedly due 

n. NewPhone has not applied for credits, Ict alone 

mouth promotion. AT&T should thcrcfom 

claims relating to customer referral 

associated with its word-of-mouth prom 

withheld payments associated with, the word 

amend its Complaint against NewPhone to remove 

marketing promotions, including the Word-of-mouth promotion. 

16. As this claim relates to AT&T’s Motion for Consolidation, NewPhone opposes 

the consolidation ofthe Complaint against it based on a word-of-mouth claim that does not exist. 

Thus, the only claim presenting a case and controvexsy between AT&T and 

relating to AT&T’s in 

atready pending in the FCC 

alculation of the cash-back promotional credits due - an issue 

17. in sum, judicial economy and efficiency wo be best served by allowing the 

FCC, the goveming body charged with ulgating and interpreting the regulations at issue, to 

provide guidance on the issues presently befo Commission. An order by the FCC may be 

dispositive of the issues raised by AT&T in the complaints. Without a stay in this proceeding, 

tbe parties will most likely waste significant money and Commission resources developing their 

ositiions, only to hnve this proceeding mooted by an intervening order of the FCC. A 

elp to avoid multiple appeals to stay or abeyance will help conserve Commission resources 

various forums. 

7 



Response in Opposition 
Motion to Dismiss/Stay 
Febi-uary 25,2010 
. - - ___. . - - 

111. Defer Consatidation Until the Appropriate Time. 

18. If the Commission does not dismiss or stay this proceeding, and does not deny 

AT&T’s Motion for Consolidation as sei forth above, NewPhone requests the Commission defer 

ruling on the Motion for Consolidation until after any Issue Identification Conferences take place 

in the cases referenced in the AT&T Motion for Consolidation. Only after the Issue 

Identification Confcrences will common issues be specified. As above, not all of the 

issues in the NewPhone case and the other Florida docket are identical. There may be some 

common issues and a viable means to consolidate those for purposes aaring. However, this 

determination is best made after Issue Identification and with the input of staff; therefore, the 

Commission should defer ruling on AT&T’s Motion and instead permit the parlies fo negotiate 

necessary, submit comment on any consolidation after Issue Identification is complete 

WHEKEFORE, NewPhone requests that the Commission dismiss the Complaint filed 

by AT&T, or in the altematiue, stay the proceeding in Cis Docket pending a resolution of the 

PCC Resale Docket and/or the court w e s  referenced herein. one fitrther requests that the 

Commission deny AT&T’s Motion for Consolidation, without prej , as premature. Further, 

if dismissal or a stay is not @anted, ruling on the AT&T Motion for Consolidation should be 

deferred as set forth in the body of this Motion. 

lU18031,1 
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Response in Opposition 
Motion to DismisdStay 
February 25,2010 

Respectfully submitted this 25"' day of February, 201 0 

Respectfully submitted, 
A 

RMAN SEN~ERFITT 
106 East CoIlege Avenue, Suite 1200 

(850) 425-1614 

Paul F. Cruarisco (LA Bar Roll No. 22070) 
Bar Roll No. 32530) 

nvention Street, Suite 11 

COUNSEL FOR IMAGE ACCESS, INC. d/b/a 
NEWPHONE 

~L218031 , I  
9 



Response m Opposition 
Motion to DismisdStay 
February 25,2010 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREB' CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the foregoing has been serve 
the following by email, andor US .  Mail this 25* day of February, 2010. 

Charles Murphy, Esq. 
Jamie Morrow, Esq. 
Office of the General Counsel 
Florida Public Service Commission 
2540 Shumard Oak Boulevard 
?'allahasme, FL 32399-0850 
cnmphy@pse.state.fl.us 
jmorrow@psc.state.fl .us 

Manuel A. Guardian 

150 South Monroe Street 
Suite 400 
Tallahassee, FL 32301 
mg2708@att.com 
th9467@att.com 

Gregory R. Pollensbee 

I 
Paul F Guarisco I JimDw 
Phelps Dunbar LLP 
XI City P l a a  
400 Convention Street-Suite 1100 
P.O. Box 4412 
Baton Rouge, LA 70821-4412 
paul.guarisco~pheJps.com 

President 
Image Access, Inc. d/b/a 

jimdry@ewphone.com 

upon 

TI2 18031 : I  
10 



PUBLIC NOTICE 
News Medm Information 2021418-0600 

Federal Communications Commission 

Washington, D.C. 20554 
445 12" st., S.W. 

DA 06-1 421 
ltelcased: JUIY IO, 2006 

FEI'ITION OF IMAGE ACCESS. INC. d/b/a NEWPIIONE FOR I)ECLAIWIOI<Y R U L I N G  
t'LEA1)ING CYCLE L~l 'AUl .ISl iK1~ 

WC Docket No. 06-i2Y 

COMMENTS: July 31,2006 
REPLY COMMENTS: August 10,2006 

On June 13,2006, Image Access, Inc. WaNewPhone (Newphone) filed a petition for 
declaratory ruling regarding the resale of incumbent looal exchange ca ricr (ILEC) services. Specifically, 
NewPhone asks the bmmission to declare that: 

subject of the ILBC's re 

face value of the promotlon from the I 
offhe promotion, and the value of the 
minimum monthly commitment up to 5 maximum of thrce months, 

shall make available for resale the 
-bundle promotions (promotions 

the wholesiite avoided cost discount to the cfkective retail rateof 
service contained within the mixed bundle; 
the effective retail rate of the telecommunications service camponen@) ufa mixed- 
bundle promotion shall be determined by prorating the telecommunications service 

nt based on the percentege that each unbundled component is to the total of the 
added together at their rewit, unbundled component prices; and 

telecommunications wi<els shall be able to resell ILEC promotions greater than 90 days 
in duration its afthc fimt day the ILEC offers the promotion to retail subscribers. 

* 

We invite comments on theNewPhone petition. Interested parties may file comments on or 
before July 31,2006 and reply comments on or before Auguet 10,2006. Comments may be filed ushg 



Exhibit A 
Page 2 of 3 

the Commission’s Electronic Comment Filing System (ECFS) or by filing paper copies.’ Comments fded 
can be sent as an electronic file via the Internet to h~p:/lwvnv.fcc.gov/cgb/ecfsl. 
P copy of an electronic submission must be filed, I f  multiple docket or rulemaking 

numbers appear in fhe caption of the proceeding, commenters must transmit one electronic copy ofthe 
comments to cach docket or rulemaking number referenced in the caption. In completing the transmittal 
screen, comaenters should includetheir full name, U.S. Postal Service mailing addms, and the 
applicable docket or rulemaking number, in this case, WC Docket No. 06-129. Parties may also submil 
an electronic comment by Internet e-mail. To get filing instructions for e-mail comments, commenteis 
should send an e-mailto ecfs@fcc.gov, and should include tho Following words in the body of the 
message, “get form.” A sample foxm and directions will be Sent in reply. who choose to file by 
paper must file an original md four copies of each filing. If more than o qr rulemaking number 
appears in the caption ofthis proceeding, commenters must submit two additional copies for each 
additional docket or mlemaking number 

Filings can be sent by hand or messenger delivery. by commercial overnight courier, or by first- 
ght U.S. Postal Service mail (although we continue to e ience delays in receiving US. 
mail). Parfies am strmgly encouraged to file comments deetrimicalty using the 

Commission% KCFS. 

l%e Commission’s contractor, Natek Inc., will receive hand-delivered or messenger-delivered 
papa film@ for the Commission’s Secretary a! 236 Massachusetts Avenue, NE, Suite 1 IO, Washington, 
D.C. 20002. 

The filing hours at this laoation are 8:OO a.m. 

All hand deliveries must be held together with rubber bands or fastsners. 

Any envelopes must be disposed of before entering the building. 

be sent to Y300 East Hampton Drive, Capitol Heights, MD 
. mesial overnight mail (other than US.  Postal Service Ex 

a1 Service first-class mail 
Street, SW, Washington, 

Competition Bureau, Federal Communications C Q ~  R O M ~  5-A351,445 12th S m t ,  SW, 
WashIngton,D.C. 20554 or by email to lynne.engIedow@w.gov. Parties skill also sew@ one copy with 

and Printing. Inc., Portals H, 445 12th Street, SW, Room 
88-5300, or via e-mail to fcc@bcpiweb.com. 

Documents in WC 
business houn at the FCC 
Washington, D.C. 20554. 

request materials In accessible formats for people with disabilities (Braille, large print, electronic files, 

’ ‘‘8 E&cfrowic 17yliwgqfnoCuments in Rutemfwg Proceedwgs, 06 Docket%. 97-1 13, Report and Order, 13 
FCCRCJ 11322(199~). 



Exhibit A 
Page 3 of3 

audio format), send an e-mail to fcc5 
telephone (202) 418-0530 or 'MY (20 

.gov or oaf1 the Consumer 62 Governmentnl Affairs Hureau at 
0432. 

This matter shall be treated as a 'pemtit-&ut-diselose" proceeding io accordance with the 
ion's expurfe rules, See 47 C.P.R. $5 1 I200 ef seq. Pe 

nda summarizing the presentations mus 
'ng oral expurte presentations 
ummaries of the substance of 

erely a listing ofthe subjects discussed. More than a one- or two-sentence 
description of the views and arguments presented generally is required. See 47 C.F.R. 5 1.1206@)(2). 
Other rules pertaining to oral and written ax parte presentations in permit-but-disclose proceedings are set 
forth in s&an 1.1206(b) of the Conmission's rules. See 47 C.F.R. 8 1.12061b). 

For further information, contaot Lynne Hewitt Engledow, Pricing Policy Uiuision, Wireline 
Competition Bureau, (202) 418-2350. 

- PCC - 



Exhibit B 
P q e  1 0124 

Case 3:09-cv-01494-P Document 68 Filed 11/30/2009 Page 1 of 24 

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COUICl' 
NORTHERN DISTRICT OFTEXAS 

DALLAS DIVISION 

BUDGET PREPAY, INC. et al., r, 
F 

Plaintiffs 

Y. 

i 
§ 
tj NO. 3:OY-CV-1494-P 
§ 

AT&T INC. RJWA SBC tj 
COMMUNICATIONS, INC. et al., 8 

5 
Defendants. 8 

ORDER 

Now before the Court is 

I .  Defendants" Motion to Risiniss for Lack of Subject Matter Jurisdiction pursuant to 

Fed. R. Civ. P. 12(b)(1) filed on August 24,2009. 

2. Defendants' Motion to Dismiss for tack of Personal Jurisdiction pursuant to Fed. R. 

Civ. P. 12(b)(2) 

3. Defendants Motion to Disnitss for Pailupe to State a Claim Upon which Relief may be 

@anted pursuant to Ped, R. Civ. P. 12( 

on August 24,2009. 

) filed 011 August 24,2000. 

Page 1 6 2 4  



Exhibit B 
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Case 3:09-cv-O1494-P Document 68 Filed 1113012009 Page 2 of 24 

4. Plaintiffs” Application and Motion for a Preliminary Injunction filed on Auyst 12, 

2009. 

5 .  Defendants’ Motion to hicrease Bond filed on Octo 

After careful consideration of the law and the parties arguments for tho reasons stated 

below Defendants’ Motion to Dismiss for Lack of Subject Matter Jurisdiction is DENIED; 

Defendants’ Motion to Dismiss for Luck of Personal Jurisdiction i s  DENIED; Defendants’ 

Motion to Dismiss for Failure to State a Claim is DENIED; Plaintiffs’ Motion for a Prelimnary 

Injunction IS GRANTED; Defendants’ Motion to Iiicrease Bond IS GRANTED; Defendants’ 

Motion to Dismiss Plaintiffs‘ anti-trust and fraud claims is GRAN 

GRANTED leave to amend their complaint to re-plead tliese claims; and Defendants’ Motion tD 

Dismiss Plaintiffs stare law claims is DENIED. 

, but Plaintif% arc 

I. Background 

Plamtiffrn Cdnipetitive Local Exchange Ca s”). A CLEC is a small 

e &om Incumbent Local Exchange Carriers telephone company that buys telephones 

(“ILECs”) large telqhon mpanies with existing telecommunications mfrastmcture. ILECs 

sell telephone service to CLECs for the retail mte minus a wholesale discaunt. CLECs then ~e 

sell that telephone service to individual consum 

These type of arrnngements are made possible by the Federal Telecommunications Act of 

1996 (FTCA). Unda the FTIJA, JLECs we required to enter into an interconnection Agreement 

(YCA”) which must then be approved by a state commission. In this case, there is an approved 

ICA between the parties m each individual state. Additionally, Phi 

prior to this dispute Defendiints have always complied with the ICA, laws, and regulations. 

fully acknowledge that 

’ Budget Prepay, Inc., Globs1 Cunn#ielion fnc. of Amcrm. Mextel Colporacion LLC drma 
Commuai~alions. Inc., and Taracmo, in& (eollfcnvely “Plaintiffa”) 

Pagc 2 of 24 

! 
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Case 3:09-cv-01494-P Document 68 Filed 11/30/2009 Page 3 of 24 

About July I ,  2009, AT&T alerted CLECs that as o f  September I ,  2009, they would no 

Ins~ead longer he eligible for promotional discounts such as the “Win-back Cnsh Promotion.”’ 

CLECs would only he cnlitled to a small fiaction of  the $50 caslrback that retall customers are 

entitled to receive. The amount that CLECs are enlitled to rwcive back varies from $3.73 - 
$5.54 depending on the location. AT&T has imposed this new method ~Fcalculatiiig the amount 

CLECs can receive under !he promotion in an attcmpt to make the resale rate reflect consumers’ 

failure to properly submit their rebate coupon. AT&T‘s reasoning for placing this rcsfriction on 

resale is that only 33.33% ofcustomers actually take the steps necessary- Le. submitting the 

coupon - to receive the $50 cash back. 

Though 47 C.F.R. 5 1 .613(b) requires ILECs to obtain state approval before imposing 

restrictions like this on resale, Defendants began implementing this resale restriction on 

September I ,  2009 without the approval of any s$te commissions. Plaintiffs have brought 

claims for Defendants‘ failure to obtain state approval. Plaintistiffs also claim that the new 

methodology used by AT&T to calculate credits available to CLECs under the Winrback Cash 

Back promotion (hereinafter “new calculation method“) violates the IGA, and the Act. Further, 

have sought an injunction claiming that without one they will lose customers, market 

share. and good will as a result of not beingable to compete with AT&T’s offer, The end result - 
according to Plaintiffs - i s  that each and every om of them will go out of business within a short 

period. 

11. Request for Declaratory Judgment 

Plaintiffs first causeofaction is for Declaratory Judgment puisumt to 28 U.S.C. 5 2201. 

Specifically, Plaintiffs ask the Court to issue a judgmeut declaring that the new calculation 

The win-track CBdl Pmimtion seeks to illtrnc-1 new cua(on1er8 away from anotlier carrier or wimlr.88 provider by 9 

&wing no conne~tion fees and $50 cash Back 
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Case 3:09-cv-01494-P Document 68 Filed 11/30/2009 Page 4 of 24 

method is a restriction on resale that is unreasonable and discriilimiilatory in violittion of 47 U.S.C. 

g 25l(c)(4), 47 C.F.R. 5 51.605(0), 47 C.F.R. 5 51.613(b), and the 1CA (PIS.’ Am. Compl. 7 44.) 

Defendants have sought to dismiss this claim for lack of subjcct matter]urisdtction pursuant to 

Rule 12(b)(l), lack of personal jurisdiction pursuant to Rule 12(b)(2), and failure to state a claim 

pursuant to rule lZ(b) 

A. Subject Matter Jluri~dictioii 

Whether the Court bas suhject matter ju  ion over Plaintiffs’ claims is the first issue 

that the Courtmust address. SeeRmnnringv. UnZfcdSrotm, 281 F.3d 158, 161 (5th Cir. 2001) 

(“When a RuJe 12(b)(l) motion is filed in mnjuiiction with orher Rule 12 motions, the eour1 

should consider the Rule 12(b)(l) jurisdictional atfack before addressing any attack on the 

merits.”). Rule 12(b)(l) provides that an action must be dismissed whm the eourt does not 

possess subject matter jurisdiction over the plaint s claims. Fed. R. Ciu. P. 12(b)(l). A eouit 

may decide a Rule 12(b)( 1) motion to dismiss *on any of three separate bases: (1) the complaint 

alone; (2) the complaint supplemented by undisputed facts evidenced in the record; OF (3) t 

camplaint supplemented by undisputed facts plus the court’s resolution of disputed facts.* 

MCG, Znc. Y. Crmt W. Energy Cup., 896 F.2d 170, 176 (5th Cir. 1990). A motion to dismiss 

for lack of subject matter juridiction should be @anted only I 

cannot prove any set oftacts in support of his claim that would entitteplaintiffto relief 

Rapnming, 281 F.3d at 161. 

appears cerraill that the plaintiff 

Defendants argue that this uit lacks mbject matterjurisdiction because Plaintiffs must 

bring their claims to a state conimission before bringing those claims in district court. It appears 

that Defeiidanls rely on two -Fate but ovcrlapping arguments for why this claim must be 

lieard by a State commissson in the fimt instance. The first argument Defcndsnts make is that 

Page 4 of 24 
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Plaintiffs have fded to exhaust administrative reinalies. The Court call easily dispense with this 

argumcnt because failure to exhaust adrninisirativt: temedies IS not required by the FTCA. 

A case may only be dismissed for lack of su ct inetter jurisdiction based on a Plaintiffs 

failure to exhaust administrative remedies when exhaustion is required by statutc. Premiere 

NetworkSenv., Inc, v. SBCComntc ‘its, I m .  440 F.3d 683, 687 11. 5 (5th Cir. 2006) (“‘Whenever 

the Collgtoss statutorily inaudatm that u claimant exhaust adtuinistmtivc iemediev the exhaustion 

requitemenf is jurisdictional.“’) (quoting lirylvr 11. United Slates Treueasioy Dep’i, 127 F.7d 470, 

475 (%iI Cir. 1997)). ”But where a statute does not textually require exhaustion, only the 

jurisprudential doctrine of exhaushon controls [subjecting a claim to dismissal under Rule 

12(b)(6)], which is not 

exhaustion. Id. Plainti% failme to exhaust administmtive remedies therefore has no bearing on 

whether the Courthas subject matter jurisdiction over Plaintiffs’ FTCA claims. 

ictional in nature,‘’ kf. Nothing in the ITCA 1extuaIIyrequirc-s 

Defendants’ however, also argue that the Court lacks subject matter jurisdiction heceuse 

swtion252(,?)(6) only gives district courts the power to review “doterminations” made by a state 

commission. Section 252(e)(6) states: 

casc in which a state commission makes n dwtennination under this seetion, 
any party agyieved by such determination may bring an action in an appropriate 
I;%dersl district court to detennine whether the ment or statement meets the 
requirements of section 251 of this titie and this s 

.C. fj 252(ex6). It is true that section 2 (6) explicitly gives distnet courts the power 

to review state commission deteimin 

review state commission detenninations plays no role in detamining whether the Court has 

subjee! matter jurisdiction in this dase. 

ns. But section 252(e)(6)’s &rant of jurisdiction to 
! 

Section 25Z(e)(6) daw not play a rolc in detciminirrg whethar the Court has subject 

matter jurisdiction in this case bccause the Court has jurisdiction under 28 U.S.C. I33 1- 01 
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what is niore commonly known as federal question jurisdiction. Disrrict courts have federal 

question jurisdiction "if 'tho right of tho [plairrtiffl to rexovct' under their mrnplatni will be 

sustained If the Constitution and laws of the United States are given one construction and will be 

defeated ifthey are given another."' Verizon Md.. Itic. v. Pub. Serv. Comrniz, 535 US. 635, 643 

(2002) (quoting Steel Co. v Crtuensfor Beffer~Knv'l, 523 US. 83, 89 (1998)). Though a statute 

may divest a district court of federal question jurisdiction, neither section 252(e)(6] nor any otber 

part of the Act has divested district courts ofthis jurisd I Md,, 535 U.S. at643-44 

("Nothing in 47 U.S.C. (i 252(e)(6) purports to strip [federal quwtion jurisdiction]. . . .Indeed, it 

does not even mention sub]ect-maftcr jurisdiction, but reads like the conferral of a pfivate right 

o f  action."). '&e Supreme Court's holdikg in Yevizozr hfd. has consistently been intqreted to 

mean that district courts need not look any further &an 28 U.S.C. $ 1331 to determine whether 

the court has subject matter juris on over FTCA claims.' 

Hero, the Court has federal question jurisdi&an bemuse Plaintiftl;' right to recover is 

based almost exclusively on the interpretation of federal law. Specifically, Plaintiff has asked 

this Court to declare that Defendants have violated 47 8 25 l(c)(4), 47 C.F.R. 8 51.605(~), 

and 47 C.F.R. 5 51.613@). Aceodingly, the Court findsit has Werat question jurisdiction over 

Yedzon Md IIIC. 11. Global &ips8 Inc., 37 
(addrepsing wbjm maitcrjurisdiclion over 

I 

law); Micir Bell Tel. 
1 courts lmve jurisdiction IO rnricw state commiwion onicrs for compIrance with fEdzral 

?&rim I-%... Inc ,493 F. 
dispute exxisted the court 

Page6 of24 
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Plaintiffs’ cause of action for declaratory judgment and naw turns to &fendants argument that 

the w e  should be dismissed pursuant to Rulc 12(b)(2). 

B. Poronrl Jurisdiction 

The plaintiffbears the burden of establishing a dishict coud’s personal jurisdiction over a 

nonresident defendant. See Wilson s. Belin, 20 F.3d 644,648 (5th Cir. 1994). The Courl lnust 

accept as true all uncontroverted allegations in the complaint, and all factual eonflicts presented 

by the parties must be resolved in favor of the phi fE See id. To exercisr. personal jurisdiction 

over a nonresident defendant, the Court must determine that due process standards are satisfied 

by engaging in a two-pronged analysis. First, the Court determines whether the defendant has 

purpose full^ established “minimum contacts” in the state. If so, the Court must then assess 

whether the exercise of personal jurisdiction would offend “traditional notions otfair play and 

substanfial justice.“ See Burger K&3g Cmp. s* Rudzewie~, 471 US, 452,473-15,476 ( 1  985); 

Bullion 11. G i k p & ,  895 F.2d 213,216 (5th Cir. 1990). 

Sufficient minimum contacta can be established through a showing ofthe existence of 

midensprung 11. O@&ore Technical Sers. lac., 319 F.3d general or specific jurisdiction. See 

321,343 (5th Cir. 2003). “A court may exercise specific jurisdiction over B nonresidetit 

defendant if the lawsuit arises from or relates to fhe defendant’s contact with the f o m i  state.” 

Icee Lkblbs. fnc. v. J#Snaeh Foo$sCorp., 325 F.3d 586,591 (5 

jurisdiction exists where a defkndant ‘purposefully avails itself of the privilege of conducting 

activities within the forum state, thus in its laws.” B i q p  

King, 471 U.S. at 475. The ‘purpaseful availment” necessary for specific jurisdiction protec[s a 

defendant &em king brought into a jurisdiction based sol5ly 01% “raildom,”“fortuitous,” or 

“attenuated” contacts. Id. A single act may fonn a sufficient basis for personal jurisdiction if the 

1’. 2003). Specific 

g the benefits and protection 

I 

I 
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claim arises from that si& act, and the defendant can reasonably foresee heing brought into 

court in the forum state. S m  l e e  Distribs., 325 F.3d at 591. 

Defendants argue that Plaintiff has filed to show that the Non-Resident lLEC 

Defendants (hereinafter "Non-Resident Defendants") have suficicnt minimum contacts with 

Tcxas to establish personal jurisdi n. But Defcndants arguments have all but ignored the 

pervasive coiifacts relating to the lCAs arid the new calculation methud. Instcad, the Nun- 

Resident Defendants would like the Court to look at a11 of the contacts the Non-Resident 

Defendants do not have with Texas. But in making this argumcnt Defendants have essentially 

asked this Court to "pay no attention to the 

man behind the ICAs- the prOVeFbia1 curtain. More importaJitly, AT&T is behind thc new 

calculation method which is at the cenler o 

behiild the curtain." AT&Tis the proverbial 

s dispute. Defendants do not deny fhae facts 

nssure the Court that personal jurisdiction exists over the Non-Resident 

Defendants. Ilie nds tbat by coinpletely relying on IC&, as 

well BS supporl and advice relating to ICAs that the Non-Residwt Defendants have purposc 

availed themselves of Texas law. Both through the Acts oftheix agent, AT&T, and through their 

own actions. 

C. Rule 12(b)[6) - Bailure to State a Claim 

Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 12(b)(6) provides for tho dismissal of a cdmphint when 

a defendant shows that the plaintiffhas failed to state a claim for which relief can be granted. 

"To survive a motion to dismiss, 8 cdniplaint must contain sufficient factual matter, rccepfed as 

Me, to 'staie a claim to relief that is pIausible on its face." I q k i  I? As~wQ$, --- U.S. ---, 129 S. 

Ct. 1937,1949 (2009) (quoting BellArl 

factual matter conlained in the complaint must allege actual facts not legal conclusions 

v. lhmbly,  550U.S. 544,570 (2007)). The 

Page E O f  24 



Exhibit B 
Page 9 of 24 

Case 3.09-cv-01494-P Document 68 Filed 11/30/2009 Page 9 of 24 

niasqumding as facts. Id. at 1949-50 rAlthough for the purposes of a niotioii to dismiss we 

must take all of the factual allegations in the complaint as true, we ‘arc iiof bound fo accept as 

true a legal eoncfusion couched as a factual allegation.”’) (quoting l iwmbfy,  550 U.S. at 555)  

Additionally, the factual allegations of the complaint must stare a plausible claim for rchf. Id 

A compiaint sfah a “plausible claim for relief” when the fachid allegations contained therein 

infer actual misconduct on the part ofthe defendant, not a ”mere possibility of misconduct.” Id.; 

see also Jacqmz v. R-oeu~iier, 801 F.2d 789,791-92 (5th Cir. 19%). Determining whether a 

complaint states n plausible claim for relief iiecessarily requires looking to the ekemaits a 

plaintiff niustplead to state a claim implicated by the complaint. I q h l ,  129 S .  Ct. at 1947 

(citing Twombly, 550 U.S. at 553-557). 

Plaintiffs claim that they are en tied to a declamtian that Dakiidants breached the ICA 

aiid that Defendants have violated 47 U.S.C. 8 25l(c)(4), 47 C.F.R. 51,605, and 47 C.F.R. 

51.613@). Ddendants argue that Plattitiffs have failed to state a claim for relief based on the 

jurisprudential doctrine o f  exhaustion. As discussed above, where exhaustion is not required by 

statufe failure to exhaust administrative remedies ma). subject a claim to dismissal nn 

12(b)(6). PreniiereNetworkServs., h., 440 F.3d at 687 n, 5 (citing. Taylor, 127 F.3d at475). 

When a plaiutiff is required to exhaust administrative remedies under the jurisprudential 

cxhaustion doctrine the plaintiff is not enfitled to judicial r&ieC Tuylor, 127 F.3d at 476 (“ ‘[Nlo 

one is entitled to judicial relisffbr a supposed or threatened injury until the prescribed 

fldministrative remedy has hpustcd.’ ”) (quoting 17. Hcthlciu?ni ShJpbtiildin$ Corp., 

303 US. 41,5041 (1938)). Accordingly, diamimi pnmnant to Rule 12(b)(6) is appropriate 

when the jurisprudential exhaustion doctrine is applied. 

I 

I 
I 

Page. 9 of24 
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Sections 251 and 252 of the Act provide many requirements and procedures for 1CAs. 

Gcncmlly, scction 251 provides the obliyttious of  local excliaqy caialrieh uildc~ Uw Acl. See 

generally 47 U.S.C. 8 25 t .  In conjunction with the obli 

provides the procedures fox negotiation, arbitrat~on, and approval of ICAs. See generally 47 

U.S.C. 5 252. The procedures ofsection 252 to the initial fomation of an ICA. See id. 

But nothing in sections 251 or 252 ofrhe Act statutorily g~ants state cornmiasions the aufhorit 

resolve disputes between parties der  the parties have mitered iiito an ICA. Co 

Inc. v. Verizon Pa., hic., 493 F.3d 333 (3d Cir. 2007) ("Beyond [the statecommissions role in 

approving an ICA] there is no real indication of what role the state comnikions are to play, and 

the Act is simply silent as to the procedure for post-fornation disputes."); see also W, Radio 

Sews. Co, v. Qwsr COF~.. ,  530 F.3d 1186, 1 184-99 (9th Cir. 2008) (&soussing the nbs 

procedural requirements once an ICA has been formed). No 

formation dispute resolution procedures the Fiifh Circuit, along with the 

interpreted the Act 89 whole to grant state commissions jurisdiction "to decide intermediation 

and enforcement disputes that arise after the approval procedures are complete." Sn? Bell T d .  

6. v. Arb. Utiis. Corn  'n, 208 F.3d 475,476 (5th Cir. 2000) (hereinafkr "SWBP); see akro 

Illinois Bell Tel. eo. v. Gbbul N4FppSliViiois. Iw., 551 F.3d 587,593-94 (7th 2008) ("[Tlhe 

TelecomunicBtions Act docs not expressly authorize a 

interconnection agreement, to resolve disputes arising under it. . . . But such authority is a 

sensible corollary to the allocation of state and fedcral mponsibaities made by rhe Act."). 

the absence of any post-ICA 

circuit cpurts, has 

e commission, after it approves an 

SWBTdid not, however, address whether thc state commission had exclusive jurisdiction 

over disputes between patties that are bound by a previouslj, formed ICA. Rather, SWBT 

addressed the m o w  qustioii ofwliefhw the state commission may in~rncddiatc and resolve 

Faape 10 of 24 
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disputes between parties to an alrcady cxisling ICA. Ikfaidants argue that because .SI%” holds 

state commissions have authority to intermediate and resolve disputes bctween parties to an 

already existing 1CA in the first instance that state commissions have exclusive jnrisctictinn aver 

such disputes. Futlhcr, Defendants argue that the FCC has spoken directly to this issue. 

Defendants rely on In re Starpowcr Cornntimica#ians, LLC, 15 F.C.C.R. 11277 (2000) for 

this proposition. The relevant part ofln re Sturpower states: 

[A]t least two federal courts [SWRT and It!. Bell Tde. Co. Worldcorn Tech., If% 
179 F.3d 566 (7th Cir. 1 W)] of appeal have held that inherent in state commissions’ 
express authority to m&iate, arbitrate, and applove interconnection agreements 
undcr section 252 is the authority to interpret and enforce previously appmved 
agreements. These court opinions implicitly recagnize that, due to its role in the 
approval process, a state commission is well-suited to address disputes arising &in 
interconnection agreements. Thus, we conclude tkat a state commission‘s failure to 
“8et to carry out its respons~bility” under scction 252 cart in surne cirnrntrfances 
include the failure lo interpret and enforce existing interconnection agreements. 

In re Stappower, 15 F.CC.R at 1 1 

has taken this part of I n  re Sturpwer to stand for the proposition that state commissions hava 

exclusive jurisdiction over disputes that arise between parties to an already existing 1CA. 

-80 (emphasis added). Like Defendants, the Thi uit 

In Cora Conzinc ‘ns, Inc, v, Yerizon Pa., Inc, 493 P.3d 333 d Cir. 20071, the Couri of 

Appeals for the Third Circuit upheld a district court’s disnxissal ofthe plaintiffs claims for breaoh 

of an ICA and violations af the F had not taken the claim to the state 

commission in fhc first instance. On apped, the court infeipreted In re Starpqwcr to mean that 

state commissions have exclusive jurisdiction over disputes bet\rreem parties to an 

Core Cunmc ‘m, 493 F.3d ar 344 (“Pursuant to FCC guidance, we hold fhat interpretation and 

enforcement actions that arise a k r  a state commission has appmved an intereoiiiiection 

A because the plai 

agreement must b 

reaching this conclusion, the eoufl noted that In re Starpower 

gated in the first imtance before the relevant state comiuission.”). In 

Id be read to mean more than 

Page 11 of 24 
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one thing. Id. at 342. Nonetheless, the court determined that FCC's f i ~  re Srorpuwer dwision, as 

intcrprctcd by thc court, was crttillecl lo Clzevrori &fa-eim. 

This Court declines to read In IY' Sfurpnw in this manner. I n  re Storponw does not 

give any indication that state commissions are the cxclusrve fomii forresolving disputes over 

already existing ICAs. See gemmdly. 111 re Starpower, IS F.C C.R. ut 11278-79. As the Core 

Cumwrtmicorions court recognized, In re Sforpower can bc read to mean more than one thing. 

More simply stated: In re Sforponer is ambiguuus. And an ambiguous agency decision is not the 

type of decision that is mean1 to f i l l  gaps in a statute under Cheveron. Second, In re Sforpower. 

explicitly indicates that there are circurnstances in which a state commission would not be 

sliirking its responsibilities by failing to interp-rer and enfom existing ICAs. Based on this 

sfabnent, the Court finds that if in re Sfurpower unambigunusly stands for anythin$, it is that 

there are cirrmmstanires in which parries to an existing ICA iieed not bring their claims fo a state 

commission in !he first instance. 

The facts and claims in this case provide exactly the type of circumsbmces in which a 

plaintiff should not he compelled to take their claims to a state commission in the first irisbncs. 

Here, the Court is not being asked to interpret the ICA. Rather% the Court is being asked to 

interpret federal law. The Court m 

standingto challenge Defendants actions. But the fact that 

not in itself mean that the Court must interpret the ICA to grant relief to Plaintif&. Nor does the 

ability ofan ICA to negate !he requirements and responsibilitics imposed by the Act mean that 

the Court must 'intapret' the ICA to granf telief to Plaintiffs? Where an ICA adopts fedeial 18w 

s that without the 

gives Plaintiffs standing d6es 

Scc 47 U.S.C. S. 2S2(&[1) ("An inoumbmt local exchange canlcr niay negotiate and enter into D binding 8graemtmt 5 

the requwling (alecommunications camer w o a n i m  without restm;l to flle standards sei forth 
0) ofsmlim 25 1 of this title ") 47 U.S.C. S 2S2taXl): see elvo 47 C.F.R 4 5 I .3 ('TO rbe a i l  

Page 12 of24 
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as conbolling the parties contractual resale obligations for resale the 

ICA to dctcnnine whefhex the plaintiff is wtilld tu ielit.Lh Rather, the Court must inteipret 

federal law to determine if the plaintiff is entitled to relief. 

rl need not interprct the 

Here, the ICA requires resale restrictions to be "consistent with regulations prescribed by 

the Coinmission under S 251(c)(4) of the Act." (Defs' App. 57.) Additionally, the ICA 

provides that "fall1 federal rules and regulations , . also apply.'' (Id.) When a court is being 

asked to interpret federal law the policy of allowing the state commission to interpret the 

agreement it approved because it knows the interpretation it intended when approving the 

agmnent does not apply. 

Conversely, it would he bad policy to require Plaintiffs in this specific case Io exhaust 

adininistmtive remedies because it would alIow Defendants to shift IO Plaintiffs the duties 

imposed upon ILECs by the Act. The Act imposes on ILECs a duty to obtnin State commission 

appmval before plaeingrestrictions on resale, 47 C.F.R. 9: 51.613tb). When an ILEC imposes 

a wsuiction on resale that is riot pennittea under 47 C.F.R. 0 51.613(a), subsection (b) requires 

an ILEC "to prove to the state commission that the m8fridion Is reasonable and 

nondiscriminatory" before imposing tho restriction. Despite the regulation placing the duty of 

going to tliestate commission on ILECs, De~e;~&~m have asked th ourt to require the 

e state commission befote bringing a claim in federal court. Were 

the Court to oblige Defendants request it would allow them to contravene the requirements and 

sccfion 252(e)(Z)(A) of the Act. a S I B I ~  w~nmisaon shall have authority IO approvc on iatweaiuieelion agreement 
adoplcd by negotiation even if the terms afthe agreement do not comply With he requirements oFtl6s pan."). 

'Tliuugh one w l d  argue that nre~?.ly dccerh%ining fbdernl law conrmlswmle sestr3clions consutules "mwpmling' 
tln ICA, this is not the lypt of inrerprehtion that courts finding that cxhnustioii is requ 
interpret See c.g &press 3'd. Senw., he. v. Sw. &ll l'ul e=, No 

uybn 10 
s 19645 

W.D. 'rw OCL iwoz) .  
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intent of the Act. The facts of this case demonstrate how the requirements and intent of the Act 

would bc contravcncd by forcing Plaintiffs to go to the stele winii~ 

claims are predicated on Defendants failure to go to the state corninksion. 

1013 first when Pltiiniifk' 

As previously discussed, Congress passed the FTCA with the intent of "opening 

previously monopolistic local telephone markets to competition." SlVFf, 208 F.3d at 477. 

Congrm entrusted the FCC with the duty o f  promulytitiny regulations that would ensure the 

Act's purpose would be met, including regulations that prevented ILECs from placing restrictions 

on resale that are unreasonable ordiscriminatory. 47 U.S.C. 4 251(c)(4)(B). To that end, 47 

C.F.R. 6 51.613(b) requires ILECs to prove that restrictions on resale are reasonable and 

nondiscriminatory before imposing such restrictions. Requiring ILECs to obtain state 

I pnorto placing restrictions on resale demonstrates a recognition that resale 

restrictions can have a devastating effect on a CLECs ability to remain comperitive. More 

importantly, it clearly places the duty to gain state commission approval on 1LECs - not CLECs, 

Defendants did not gain state commission approval before implementing the new 

calculation methodology, instead, Defmdants notified Plaintiffs thaI the new methodology 

would go into efFect on September 1,2009. Plaintiff', fearful this restriction on resale 

would devastate their coipnies,  sought refuge in federal court. Defendants ignored their own 

state commission approval before $acing restrietions on resale Then after being 

fendants vehernetitly argue that Plaintiffs should be required to go to ltsiled into mrt 

seventeen different state commissions before bringing any claims to one federal courf. Where 

the jurisprudcntial exhaustion doctrine is policy motivated, th 

invoke the doctrine in this instance. 

urf cannot allow Defendwts to 

Page 14 of 24 
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Finding that the jurisprudential doctrine of exl~austioi~ is in~pphcable to this case, !lie 

Court tms  to the factual allegations of Plamtiffs' Complaint to detennine if they have stated a 

claim for relief. 

Plaintiffs havc alleged factual ~Ilegations that, taken a$ true, infer actual iniscnnduct on 

the part of Defendants. For examplc, Plaintiffs have alleged that they were notified by 

Defendantu of a nGw method that would be used to calculate the rates at which 

telecommunication serviws would be resold to Plaintiffs under certain promotional ~ I E I I S  This 

new method provided retail customem who switched to Defendants telephone company from a 

different telephonecompany with fifty dollars cash-back and a waiver of all nonrecurring 

charges associated with adding serviec. Plaintiffs that resold service to customers switching 

companies however, would not be mti 

nonrccmring charges to its customers, Tllaugh the compl 

these allegations alone indicsto rhar Defend8nt$ may have violated the requirements of47 U.S.C. 

8 251(c)(4) and 47 C.P.R. 6 51.605. Moreover, as previously 

Defendants failed to obtain state commission approval hefore 

method in violation of47 C.F.R. g 51.613(b). 

llars cash-back or a waiver of 

ctual allegations, 

cussed, Plaintiffs allege that 

lementing the new caIculatzon 

Accordingly, the CbM finds th@ Plaintiffs have stated a for telief wd Defeadants 

Rule I2(b)(6) motion is deni 

doctrine, the primary jurisdiction doctrine, wamnts dismissal of Plaintiffs claims. Because the 

primary jurisdiction doctrine would only warrant ataying these prowedingi the Court addresses 

this arguiwnt wpralely Gorn Defendants' Rule 12(b)(B) motion. 

Defendants however, have argued that another jurisptudential 

Page 15 of 24 
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D. Primary Jurisdiction 

"[Plrimary jurisdiction 'conies into play whenever enforcement of thc claim requires the 

resolution of issucs [which, under a regulatory schcine, have bwu y l ~ d ]  within the special 

wnipekmce of an admiiiistrative body, ui such a case the jud t process is suspcndcd pcndmng 

referral of such issues to the administrative body for its views." P ~ I Y J ~ ~  v Sw. RdI  Tele Co ,906 

P 2d 183, 187 (51h Cir, 1990) (quotingSw. Belt Tel. I>. P. U.C. 735 S.W. 2d 663,669 (Tex. App. 

- Austin 1987, no writ); see also ASAP Pirging, lnc. v. ryTel ofSan Marcos Inc., I37 Fed, 

Apps. 694. 697 (5ih Cir 2OOJ)c"he doctrine of pnmary jurisdiction applies , . . when a court 

having jurisdiction wishes to defer to an agency's superior expertise."} (crting Arsbeny 1'. 

IlIinois, 244 F.3d 558, 563 (7th Cir. ZOO1 1). Since '[nlo fixed formula exists for applying the 

doetrine of primary jurisdiction,' each 

it would be aided by the dochine's application." Penny, 906 F.2d at 187 (quoting Sw. Beli v. 

P.U.C., 735 S.W. 2d at 670). 

must be examined individually to determine whether 

Courts faced with the task ofdetmining whether primary jurisdiction applies when a 

dispute arises between parties to an already existing ICA have noted that &a statuforyscheme 

cotnplicates the issue. The statutory scheme complicates the issue because fhe appropriate 

agency to which the court would refer &e issue is  not one agency entrusted with carryiag out this 

regulatory scheme, but multiple state comnussions. See JK Radio Ssrvs. Go. v. Qwesr Ca 

F.3d 11 86, 1200 (9th Cir. 2WR) ("The doctrine ofpnmary jurisdietion . . . is. . . not R perfst f i t  

for the Statute before us. For one thing, the agency with 'regulatory authority' inthis eontext, in 

the s e w  ufhiving lhe uuthority to promulgate regulations, is the F.C.C., not the State 

wnuniauions,") Additionally, the statutory scheme does not provide a proceduizl mechanism for 

referring issues io a state commission. See IUznois Bell Tel. Co. IJ Global NAPS INtnois, Inc., 
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5 5 1  F.3d 587 (7th 2008) (“The Act [does not] expressly authorizrs a federal couit to refer such a 

dispuk, Xrhc disyute a h a  in a suit in I‘iCiVtdi wourk, 10 the state coininission , . ,.”). Despite 

cations, courts have routinely determined that issues may be referred to state 

commissions when appropriate. Id. (finding that a federal court’s authority fe refer issues to the 

state conmifssion ”is a sensible corollary to the allocation of state aid Etderal responsibilities”): 

see also Penny, 906 F.2d at t87-88 (refarel to state commission was procedurally proper where 

the state coinniission and district court had concurrent jurisdiction to determine whether rates 

where discriminatory under the FTCA). 

Plaintiffs’ FTCA claims bring forth two distinot issues. First, whether Defendants were 

required to obtain state commission approval More implementing the 1 1 ~  caloulation method. 

This issue is one that docs no4 require agency expertise and therefore the Court need not refer it 

to the state commissions. 

The second issue is whether &e resale restriction is reasbnable ilnd nondiscriminatory. 

Determining whether a resale restrbtion is reasonable and iiondiscriinimtory i s  m issue 

routiiiely addressed by state mmmksions. 

referral to tlxe state commissions. The regulatory scheme bolsters thW conclusiofi as it requires 

Defendants to prove to the state commission that a restriction on resale is reasonable and 

nondiscriminatory. Moreover, Defendants have indicated that they we now seeking approval of 

the new calculation inerhod fiwn statccommissions. The Court 

Defendants attempts to obtain the approval that should have been obtained before implementing 

the plan. Accordingly, the Court finds that it is appropriate to stay PI 

resolution of this issue by each of the appropriate state commissions. 

erefo%, this issue is one that is appmpriate for 

find no mason to thwart 

tiffs’ claims peuding a 

P a p  17 of 24 
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E. Preliminary Injunction 

A preliminary irjunction may only be granted if a plaintiff establishes four elcmeiits. (1) 

a substan(la1 likelihood of success on rhe merits, (2) a substantial threat that plaintiff will suffer 

irreparable injury iFtlie injunction is denicd, (3) that the threatened injury outweighs any damdge 

that the injunction niight cause defendants, and (4) that the injunction will not dissevvc thc public 

interest. Su&?r Uzrs/ers LLC v &m?Un, 177 F.3d 258.265 (5th Cir. 1999). A pieliniinary 

injunction is an extraordinary rcmedy which should only be granted when the plaintiff has 

clearly canied liin burden of ploof as to all four elements, see Kern River Gus Trnnsnrission Co 

I). Coasiui Carp., 899 FL2d 14511, 1462 (5th Cir. 199Q), aid the decision is to be treated as the 

exception rather than the rulo. See MEssi;rsippi P w c r  & Lighr Co 11. llnrted Gcrs Pipe Line Co., 

760 F.2d 618,621 (5th 

Mere, Plaintiff3 have clcaily carried the burden of establishing all four denienzs making 

the entry of a preliminary injunction appropriate Plaintiffs have established, and Defendants 

have admitted in open court, that state commission approval was not obtained prior to 

Defendants implementing the new calcula~ion method which Es a isstriction on iessle. As 

previously discussed, 47 C.F.R. $ 5  1, 01) requires ILECs to obtain state cornmission approval 

before implementing a resale reutriction. Plaintiffs therefore, have established a strong likelihood 

of suwwi on their claim that Defendants viofated 47 C.F.R. $ 51.613(b)? 

'Communications by Defendants 10 the W r l  
their claim that Defendants violated A7 C.F.R 
Cour! and Plaintiff3 Illat lbey hnd veccivrd I I  le 

tikcliliood of succw on 

and ATgtT's failure to 

discriniinatory, rhe Louisiana Public Service Coininissioii's decision indiatos a strong JikcUhaod of such 8 finding. 

pnge 18 
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Plaintiffs bave also established tliat rf Defdmts were pmitted to implement the new 

calculation method tliat they would suffci itrepamble injury il'lhe iujunclion i s  denied. The new 

calculation method would significantly impair Plaintiffs ability to mmpetc with Defendants for 

new customers, There would be no ability to compete because Defendants would be able to 

entice new customers by offering $50 cash-back and a waiver of cotinection fecs. Meanwhile, 

Pleintiffs would not be able to make the same offer because they would be purchasing service 

fiom AT&T at the nonnal retai1 prim without $50 ash-back or waiver of connection fees! In 

the absence of an injunction, Plaintiffs would be Forced to pay more for service tban they would 

have to pay without the iesale restriction that htls not becn approved by any of the state 

commissions. Plaintiffs would have to make these payments while aimultaneousfy losing money 

because of their inabili&y to compete with Defendants. These circumetartoes would devastate 

Plaintiffs' business. In today's w n o  this type of devastation could ultimately force 

being out ofbusiness- business or at the last push &em to the briu 

something from which they would be unlikely to recover. 

Plaintiffs have a1 onstrated the threafmed injury to than outweighs any damage 

importence to comparing the 

inillions of dotlam at this 

that the injunction might causeDefmdenfs. It is of eo 

povsible injuries that it is likely that if Plaintiffs were 

tiae that it would be into an escrow account, Accordingly, Defendants would not actually be 

deprived of any iricoine during the period in which this case is pending because the money would 

remain in an escrow account. Conversely, Plaintiffs would be forced to pay money that they do 

Page 19 af 24 
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not have into an escrow thereby depriving of them of lhat money immediately. Therefore, the 

Court finds that the tireparaable injuiy that would bc c a u d  Lo Plai 

injunction would outweigh any damage that the injunction rnzght cause Defendants. 

in the absence of an 

Finally, Plaintiffs have demonstrated that the itijuncfion will not disserve the public 

interest. An injunction in this case will promote compehtiveness by ensuring that the statutes 

and regulations of the FTCA are met. Enjoining Defendants from lmplementin& tbe new nlethod 

of calculation without obtaining state commission approval wilt serve the public iiiterest by 

providing enforcement of the regulations promulgated by thc FCC. Were thrs Court to simply 

refer this case to the many appropriate state eommissions without issuing a preliminary 

&junction then Defendants could go back to i 

obtain approval from the state commission. In so doing, Defendants may be able to force 

enting the new calculation method prior to 

n e s ~  befobre ever obtaining that a rcing Plaintiffs out 

of business would leave Defendants as one ofthe few p 

rdevant merket. With far Fewer teiephane 

these hard ecoaomic timas thi 

Accordingly, the 

em of telephone service in the 

ders there will be far less competition. Dunng 

6untry needs more competitiun not less compctition. 

urt finds that it01 issuing an injunction woo isservethe public interest. 

F. Bond 

'I'hough Defendants' Motion lo Increase Bond was made in reference to the bond ordered 

bythe Court when issuing fhe T.R,O., the motion can ako be read as requesting that bond be 

iricteased upon the entry of a preliminary injunction. Accordingly, the Court address= 

Defendants' motion now. 
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Rule 6S(c) states. 

The Cowt may issuc a peliniiiiuiy ilrjuiiolion . . . only if the movant gives sccurity in 
an amount that the cuicrl cons idwsp~op  to pay the costs and damages sustaincd by 
any party found to have been wrongfully enjoined or restrained. 

Fed. R. Civ. 1'. 6S(c) (enipliasis added). The italicized language indica\% thhat determining the 

proper amount of bond is within the discretion of the district court. Id,; see also Peiiv Frcancliise 

Sys., LLCv. AN Am. Props., e., GO7 F. Supp. 2d 781, 801 (W.U. 'I'ex. 2009) ("Ld]istrict courts 

have discretion over the amount ofthe security"). As discussed above, the Court finds that it is 

substantially likely that Plaintiff will succeed in demonstrating that Defendants failed to obtain 

state approval prior to implementing the new calculation method. In large part, this conclusion is 

based on Defendants own admissions in open court. Accordingly, the Court finds that it is 

highly unlikely that Defendants are being wrongfully restrained &om implementing the new 

method of caIculat1on pikx to obtaining approval from the appropriete state commissions, The 

unlikelih~od that Defendants are being wrongfully restrained, coupled with the fact that 

Plaintif% otherwise valid aim would beobviated by heing forced to post an inordinately large 

bond amount, leads this Court to that the $1,000,DOO bond Defendants request would 

be impwper. 

Nodetheless, the Court does find that the amount of the bond postcd should be increased 

to mtxe pmperly reflect the guidance &en by Rul 

i~~emses the bond from $5,000 to SS0,OOO. Accordingly, Defend8 

(e). Using this guidance, the Court h 

Motion to Increase Bond 

is grmtcd. 

IH, Plaintiffs' Anti-Trust and Fraud Cldrma 

fondants argue that Plaintiffs' ailti-mst and fraud claims should be dismissed pursuant 

to Rufe 12@)(6). Plaintiffs have essentially admitted that the Amended Complaint does not state 

PsgeZY of24 
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a claim for relief for anti-trust violations or fraud. Plamtrffs have requested leave to amend to 

correct these e~rois. Tltough llte Courl believes that Dekndants may be correet in tlAr assertion 

that leave Io amend would be futile in light of Ferizon C O J H J H C ' ~ S ~ ~ C .  v. Trisrko, 540 US. 198, 

407 (2004), the Court i s  not prepared to reject Plaintiffs' con!ention that it can plead facts tha! 

will stale an anti-bust claim for relief. Accordingly, the Court believes that Plaintiffs should be 

granted leave to amend the complaint. In so doing, the Court directs Plain!Xfs to be mindful of 

l)-inko wlien pleading tlicir anti-h2St claims and 'to be mindful ofthe heightened pleading 

standards of Fed, R. Civ. P. 9 when pleading their fiaud claims. 

IV. Plaintiffs State Law Claims 

Defendants only argument for dismissal of Plaintiffs' state law cl IS is that ifthis Courl 

dismisses Plaintiffs' federal claims it will not have j 

The Court hobwar, has not djsmimd Plaintiffs' federal claims. Supplemental jurisdiction over 

Plaintiffs' stafe law claims is fherefore proper. 

iction ovex Plaintifis' state law claims. 

V. Conclusbn 

For tlie above stated reasons, the Court Defendants' Motion to msmiss for Lack of 

Subject Matter Jurisdiction i s  DENIED; Dcfendaiits' Motion to Dismiss for Lack of Personal 

Jurisdiction i s  DENIED, Defendants' Motion to Dismiss for Failure to Stete a Claim is DENIED, 

Flaintiffs' Motion for a Preliminary Injunction is GRANTED; Defendmts' Motian to Increase 

Bond is GRANTED; Defendants' Motion to Dismiss Plaintiffs' anti-trust and fraud claims is 

but Plaintiffs are GRANTED lcavefo am r complaint to replead these 

claims; and Defendants' Motion to Dismiss Plaintiffs state law claims is DENIED. 

The Court ORDERS Dofondants Lo desist and restrain froin: 

Page 22 of 24 
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1. Discximinuting against Plaintiffs as rmellers by proceeding to use the nicthodology 

announced in the July I ,  2009, Accessible Letter (Number CLECALLOY-048)' to 

calculate credits available to Competitive Local Exchangc Caniea (CLECq) under 

the Win-back Cash Rack promotion. 

2. Implementing or further in~plcmcn~ing any plans to impose restrictions on the resale 

of fhe cash back or other promotional offers lasting longer than 90 days to Plaintiffs 

whnr nich plans calculate the cidrts available to CLECs using tbe mcthodoloby 

announced in the July 1,2009, Accessible Letter (Number CIJXALL09-048) 

/' 

without lirst obtain opproval from the appropriate state commission. 

3. Pursuingcotleccion activities against Plaintiffs in ConneCtjon witb aniounts related to 

the dispute ovw the calculation of crdtts using the ineflaodology announced in the 

July 1,2009, Accessible Letter (Number CLE 

pmhibitioii against Defendants %om demanding payment of charges in excess ofthe 

promotional rate reduced by the wholesale discount, withholding preferential pricing 

discounts to Piahti&, '09uiring or amounts placed in w#w, or 

-048). This includes a 

suspending or dimimectiw service to Plainfiffs, for amounts conuected to this 

dispute. 

IT IS FURTHE ERED that: 

in the ainount of $ 

heir plans to implement thc acw calculation metliod to the 

appropriate statc comnissioiis. 

-_ - 

'(PIS.' Am. Compl. Ex. 3) 
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These proceedings will be staycd until wtah State coinni~ss~on has reRched a decision 

dctcrmining whcthct Defendants' new mlculahon iiiefli~oit is iwasunabI.r: atid riolidiscrimiiiamry. 

Plaintis shall file their Atnendcd Complaint, if any, once fhe gray has been lifted. Though the 

pro"dings will he stayed, the 

been lifted or until it i s  otherwise altered by a written and signed order of the Court." 

nary injunction wlll continue in effect until the stay has 

IT IS SO ORDERED. 

A 
SlGNED t h i s z k  day of November, 2009. 

UNITED STATES DISTRICT JUDGE 


